

Prostate artery embolisation

Radiology Department Patient Information Leaflet

Introduction

This leaflet tells you about having prostate artery embolisation (PAE). It explains what is involved and what the possible risks are. It is not meant to replace informed discussion between you and your doctor, but can act as a starting point for such discussions. If you have any questions about the procedure, please ask the doctor who has referred you or the department which is going to perform it.

What is prostate artery embolisation (PAE)?

PAE is a non-surgical way of treating an enlarged and troublesome prostate gland by blocking off the vessels that feed the gland, making it shrink. It is performed by an interventional radiologist (image-guided surgeon) rather than a urologist and is an alternative to a transurethral resection of prostate (TURP) or other prostate operations, including laser surgery. PAE was first performed in 2009, and since then over 900 men have had the procedure performed, predominantly in Portugal, Brazil and the USA. The procedure has also been performed in the UK under the Registry of Prostate Embolisation (ROPE) registry trial, showing good results with similar symptomatic improvement compared to TURP, and less complications.

Why might I need prostate artery embolisation?

Other tests that you have had done will have shown that you are suffering from an enlarged prostate, and that this is causing you considerable symptoms. Your urologist and your GP should have told you all about the ways of dealing with this, usually starting with medication. Previously, most severe prostatic symptoms have been treated by a TURP operation. In your case, it has been decided that embolisation is an alternative treatment worth considering.

Who has made the decision?

The urologist and interventional radiologist will have discussed your situation and have decided that you could consider embolisation under the care of the interventional radiologist as a treatment option for your enlarged prostate gland. However, it is very important that you have had the opportunity for your opinion to be taken into account.

If, after full discussion with your doctors, you do not want the PAE carried out, then you must decide against it.

Who will be doing the procedure?

Specially trained doctors called interventional radiologists (image-guided surgeons) will be doing the procedure. Interventional radiologists have special expertise in using X-ray equipment, and also in interpreting the images produced. They need to look at these images while carrying out the procedure. Consequently, interventional radiologists are the best trained people to insert needles and fine catheters into blood vessels through the skin, and place them correctly. The procedure takes place in a specialised X-ray room called an interventional radiology theatre.

How do I prepare for prostate artery embolisation?

You need to be admitted to the hospital, usually as a day case patient. You will probably be asked not to eat for four hours beforehand, though you may be told that it is alright to drink some water. You may receive a sedative to relieve anxiety, but the procedure is normally performed under local anaesthesia. You will be asked to put on a hospital gown. The procedure is generally carried out using the artery in the groin or wrist.

If you have any allergies, you must let your doctor know. If you have previously reacted to contrast medium (the dye used in CT scanning) then you must also tell your doctor about this.

What happens during prostate artery embolisation?

You will lie on the X-ray table, generally flat on your back. You may need to have a urinary catheter inserted prior to the procedure (if there is not already one in place) as this acts as a guide for the embolisation procedure. You may need to have a needle put into a vein in your arm so that you can have a sedative and painkillers if required. You may also have a monitoring device attached to your chest and finger, and we may give you oxygen through small tubes in your nose.

The interventional radiologist will keep everything sterile and will wear a theatre gown and operating gloves. The skin near the point of insertion, groin or wrist, will be cleaned with antiseptic and covered with a theatre drape.

The skin and deeper tissues over the artery in the groin or wrist will be anaesthetised with local anaesthetic, and then a needle will be inserted into this artery. Once the interventional radiologist is satisfied that this is correctly positioned, a guide wire is placed through the needle and into this artery. Then, the needle is withdrawn, allowing a fine, plastic tube called a catheter to be placed over the wire and into this artery. The interventional radiologist will use the X-ray equipment to make sure that the catheter and the wire are then moved into the correct position, into the other arteries which are feeding the prostate. These arteries are quite small and rather variable. A special X-ray dye, called contrast medium, is injected down the catheter into these prostate arteries, and this may give you a hot feeling in the pelvis.

The interventional radiologist may then perform a CT scan-like technique, where the X-ray tube rotates around the table and the images are then processed by a powerful computer to make sure no abnormal arterial connections are present. Once the prostate blood supply has been identified, fluid containing thousands of tiny particles is injected through the catheter into these small arteries which nourish the prostate. This silts up these small blood vessels and blocks them so that the prostate is starved of its blood supply.

Both the right and the left prostatic arteries need to be blocked in this way. It can often all be done from a single artery puncture, but occasionally two are required. At the end of the procedure, the catheter is withdrawn, and pressure is applied to prevent any bleeding.

Will it hurt?

When the local anaesthetic is injected, it will sting for a short while, but this soon wears off. You may have a small bruise after the procedure. Sometimes, patients may experience some pelvic pain after the procedure, which is normal post-embolisation pain and may last for one to three days. This can normally be controlled with simple oral analgesic tablets e.g. paracetamol.

How long will it take?

Every patient is different, and it is not always easy to predict. However, expect to be in the radiology department for about two to three hours.

What happens afterwards?

Following the procedure, you will be taken back to an observation area/ward where you will be looked after by nursing staff familiar with the procedure. They will carry out routine observations, including your pulse and blood pressure.

Are there any risks?

Prostate artery embolisation is a fairly new procedure which the National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE) has deemed safe, but there are some risks and complications that can arise, as with any medical treatment.

There may occasionally be a small bruise, called a haematoma, at the site of needle puncture into the artery, and this is quite normal. If this becomes a large bruise, then there is a risk of infection, and antibiotics may be required.

Most patients feel some pain afterwards, but this is usually mild.

Occasionally, a urinary catheter may need to be placed for retention.

Non-target embolisation with damage to the bladder and rectum has been seen very rarely in larger overseas series. Although potentially serious, these risks are very uncommon and will be discussed at the time of your consent for treatment.

X-ray precautions

The procedure uses X-rays, and these use a small amount of radiation which may add slightly to the normal risk of cancer.

Your doctor thinks that the benefit of the examination outweighs the risks. However, if you are concerned about these possible risks, please discuss these with this doctor.

For more information, visit:

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/medical-radiationpatient-doses/patient-dose-information-guidance

What are the results?

Although it is a relatively new procedure, we know that over 70 per cent of men will gain symptomatic improvement after PAE with reduction in prostate volumes and an increase in urinary flow rates. Difficulty in finding tortuous or small prostate arteries may lead to technical failures in around 10 per cent of cases. In case of failure, traditional TURP surgery may be offered.

Potential benefits of PAE over surgery are fewer and less serious complications. Traditional surgical options may result in heavy bleeding or retrograde ejaculation leading to loss of sexual function or fertility. This can be avoided with PAE. Also, PAE can be performed as a day case procedure (compared to a possible three to four day hospital stay with surgery) and can avoid the need for a general anaesthetic.

Finally

Some of your questions should have been answered by this leaflet, but remember that this is only a starting point for discussion about your treatment with the doctors looking after you. Make sure you are satisfied that you have received enough information about the procedure.

Contact

The British Society of Interventional Radiology <u>www.bsir.org</u>

Department of Radiology Russells Hall Hospital West Wing, Ground Floor Pensnett Road Dudley West Midlands DY1 2HQ

© This leaflet has been reproduced with kind permission from British Society of Interventional Radiology

If you have any questions, or if there is anything you do not understand about this leaflet, please contact:

The Radiology Department

Russells Hall Hospital switchboard number: 01384 456111

This leaflet can be downloaded or printed from:

http://dgft.nhs.uk/services-and-wards/radiology

If you have any feedback on this patient information leaflet, please email dgft.patient.information@nhs.net

This leaflet can be made available in large print, audio version and in other languages, please call 0800 073 0510.

للحصول على هذه النشرة بحجم أكبر، وعلى شكل إصدار صوتي و بلغات أخرى، الرجاء الاتصال بالرقم 08000730510.

此宣传单可提供大字版本、音频版本和其它语言版本,请拨打电话: 0800 073 0510。

Ulotka dostępna jest również w dużym druku, wersji audio lub w innym języku. W tym celu zadzwoń pod numer 0800 073 0510.

ਇਹ ਪਰਚਾ ਵੱਡੇ ਅੱਖਰਾਂ, ਬੋਲ ਕੇ ਰੀਕਾਰਡ ਕੀਤਾ ਹੋਇਆ ਅਤੇ ਦੂਸਰੀਆਂ ਭਾਸ਼ਾਵਾਂ ਵਿਚ ਵੀ ਪ੍ਰਾਪਤ ਹੋ ਸਕਦਾ ਹੈ, 0800 073 0510 ਤੇ ਫੋਨ ਕਰੋ ਜੀ।

Aceasta brosura poate fi pusa la dispozitie tiparita cu caractere mari, versiune audio sau in alte limbi, pentru acest lucru va rugam sunati la 0800 073 0510.

یہ کتابچہ آپ کو بڑے حروف کی لکھائی ، سمعی صورت اور دیگر زبانوں میں مہیا کیا جا سکتا ہے برائے مہریاتی فون نمبر 08000730510پر رابطہ کریں۔

Originator: Radiology Department. Date originated: November 2020. Review date: April 2027. Version: 2. DGH ref: DGH/PIL/02020